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PROGRAM TITLE: FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION CONTRACT TOWER (FCT) PROGRAM SUPPORT FOR AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL SERVICES 

POINTS OF CONTACT

Connie Brown, Contracting Officer, ASU-340, (202) 267-3634

Willie Card, Program Manager, ATO-140, (202) 267-9336

Darryl Anderson, Contract Specialist, ASU-340, (202) 267-7699

Janet Langweil, Contract Specialist, ASU-340, (202) 267-7802

Jackie Johnson, Contract Specialist, ASU-340, (202) 267-3643

Address all written correspondence to the following:

Federal Aviation Administration, 800 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20591

ATTN: Connie Brown, ASU-340, Room 406

Connie.brown@faa.gov (for e-mail correspondence)

BACKGROUND

On December 9, 1998, the FAA released a public announcement in the form of a Request for Information (RFI) regarding the forthcoming requirement. The announcement (1) provided a description of the proposed requirement (a five year effort which would assist the Federal Aviation Administration’s Contract Tower program in providing ongoing air traffic control services) and (2) provided a proposed SIR release date. The FAA requested that industry provide written comments to the draft SOW and/or letters of interest. The announcement also informed industry that the FAA would review all written comments, include all eligible interest letters on a bidder’s list, and provide notification to the company regarding the release of future public announcements related to this requirement. The ultimate goal of December’s announcement was to use industry’s responses and questions to improve the draft statement of work, and to ascertain the number of potential offerors interested in the anticipated procurement.

PURPOSE

The purpose of this announcement is as follows: (1) to provide a Government response to industry’s questions/comments under Attachment 2, (2) to include a list of interested bidders under Attachment 3 and (3) to release under Attachment 4 the SIR entitled “Federal Aviation Administration Contract Tower (FCT) Program Support For Air Traffic Control Services”.
Attachment 2 provides the questions/comments that were generated from industry’s review of the draft Statement of Work, and includes the FAA’s response.







ATTACHMENT 1









Page 2 of 2 pages

Attachment 3 is not a qualified vendor’s list, but rather an alphabetical listing of the companies that responded to the December announcement. The company and point of contact are included.

Attachment 4 provides the Official FCT SIR dated 23 July, 1999.
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Q.1. Statement of Work (SOW) Paragraph C.4.13.2 appears to impose a “Cost Plus” requirement on what is intended as a “Firm Fixed Price” contract. Is the contract still going to be FFP?

Government response: Yes

Q.2. Statement of Work (SOW) Paragraph C.5.3.  What would be considered adequate notice?

Government response: Paragraph C.5.3 will appear as paragraph 4.7.4 in the SIR transmitted to Industry. It has been changed to read: The Contractor shall notify FAA in advance of any testing, certification, or training requirements to ensure the needs of a specific FCT site are met in a timely manner. This is particularly important for FCT locations that are a lengthy travel distance from the nearest FAA Hub facility providing the testing support.  

Q.3 Is a contractor limited to the number of areas they may bid on?

Government response: No

Q.4. Is a contractor limited to the number of areas that they may be awarded?

Government response: Yes. FAA will award six contracts with a maximum of four (4) contracts to one Offeror, (i.e., a maximum of 2 contracts for areas outside of and 2 contracts for areas inside of the contiguous United States). 

Q.5. Into which area will Saipan be placed?

Government response: Area 6. Changes to the number of Areas will be reflected in the SOW to be released with the next SIR.

Q.6. Will Department of Labor (DOL) Wage Determinations (WD) be provided for each FCT with the SIR?

Government response: No, DOL Wage determinations will be provided under a separate amendment to the SIR upon receipt from DOL.

If yes, will the Firm Fixed Price contract be adjusted to reflect any change to a DOL WD?

Government response: N/A
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Will any expected escalation be included?

Government response: No

Q.7. C.4.1.1 – What is FAA’s definition of an emergency situation?

Government response: For the purpose of this paragraph it means situations/circumstances over which the contractor would have no reasonable measure of control. 

Q.8. C.4.1.2 – Who in the FAA should be advised of a staffing change?

Government response: The FCT Program Office.

Q.9. C.4.1.3 – How long does the FAA have to review and process a request to change operating hours?

Government response: Changes to operating hours are governed by FAA Order 7232.5. There is no time limit associated with processing a request.

Q.10. Statement of Work (SOW) Paragraph C.4.4 – Non-ATC duties

a. What does FAA consider non-ATC duties?

Government Response: Duties other than that necessary for the control of air traffic and related services.

b. The second sentence, Non-ATC workload factors…” please explain the statement “shall not in any way influence the dollar values of the subject proposal?

Government response: The offerors price is expected to reflect the estimated cost he expects to incur to satisfy the requirements of the SOW. The answer to a. above is germane.

Q.11. Statement of Work (SOW) Paragraph C.4.7.2 – Will the contractor be required to use the FAA’s TRAX automated Training and Proficiency tracking system?

Government response: No

Q.12. Statement of Work (SOW) Paragraph C.4.7.6 – Are contractor personnel allowed to participate in a familiarization program outside FAA’s program?

Government response: Question is not germane to the SOW requirement. 
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Q.13. Statement of Work (SOW) Paragraph C.4.13.2 – To whom in the FAA is the monthly staffing report submitted?

Government response: This requirement will be changed and reflected in the SOW to be released with the SIR.

Q.14. There is no Appendix 3 identified. Is the anti-drug program requirement section, Appendix 3?

Government response: The Drug Testing requirement was referenced in paragraph C.4.10 of the draft SOW and was Appendix 3. However, the FAA Drug and Alcohol programs are now governed by 49 Code of Federal Regulation’s (CFR), Part 40 – Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug Testing Program – 1997, and 14 CFR, Part 121, Appendices I, and J – 1997.  

Q.15 Anti-Drug Program

a. Pre-employment testing – Will their be a waiver to this section for employees who were covered under a FAA or other Federal government anti-drug testing within the last 30 days or some other set period of time? I.e. A current contract controller moving from one company to another or retiring FAA controller or a recently discharged military controller. 

Government response: Yes, provided the provisions outlined in 14 CFR, Part 121, Appendix I, and 49 CFR, Part 40 are met.

b. Random Testing – C.(1) (b) and (2) – Hasn’t the FAA and aviation industry percentage for safety related positions recently been lowered to either 25% or 10% of employees being tested annually? Will the FCT contract reflect this lower percentage?

Government response: FAA Drug and Alcohol programs are now governed by 49 Code of Federal Regulation’s (CFR), Part 40 – Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug Testing Program – 1997, and 14 CFR, Part 121, Appendices I, and J – 1997.  

c. Post-Accident Testing – Who determines if an employee’s performance either contributed to an accident or cannot be completely discounted as a contributing factor, the FAA or the contractor?

Government response: The contractor

d. Testing based on reasonable cause – Why is the FAA defining how a contractor will deal with their employee? Isn’t this a contractor call and shouldn’t it be defined in their Employers Drug Testing Plan? Two versus one supervisor, what training is required in 
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order to make a determination if there is reasonable cause, and what beliefs led to the call for testing.

Government response: FAA Drug and Alcohol programs are now governed by 49 Code of Federal Regulation’s (CFR), Part 40 – Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug Testing Program – 1997, and 14 CFR, Part 121, Appendices I, and J – 1997.

Does the FAA have a definitive guideline as to what is acceptable training for detection of possible drug use or does the contractor define the level of training for the supervisor?

Government response: See Government response to d. above.

e. Administrative matters – C. Employee request to retest a specimen - Shouldn’t identifying who pays the cost of a retest be a matter handled between the employer and the employee, why is the FAA specifying who pays?

Government response: See Government response to d. above.

f. D. Release of Drug Testing Information – Shouldn’t release of information to a third party, other than the FAA or NTSB, be an employee/employer matter as dictated by Corporate Policy and state statute and not part of the SOW?

Government response: See Government response to d. above.

Q16. Appendix 4. Site Specific Information

FCT locations 0024, 0105, 0120, 0122, 0127, 0129, 0130, 0230, are not to be included in the National contract. Why are they included in Appendix 4 of the contract?

Government response: The note “Not to be included in the National Program” should not have appeared in the draft SOW.

 FCT location 0214 states “The contractor will be required to provide administrative space at that time.” Please clarify the intent of the entire statement; who is the space for and what administrative purposes will it be used for?

Government response: The note should not have appeared in the draft SOW.

A number of FCT locations have “Other site-specific requirements” for extra/additional staffing for special events. Will a paragraph be added to the contract, similar to C.5.5 that allows for an adjustment in price to cover these added services?

Government response: No. Recurring events that could cause an increase in staffing or 
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operating hours should be reflected in the contractors proposals.

Q.17. Does the FAA plan on holding a bidders or pre-proposal conference? If so, what will be the guidelines on attendance (i.e.: 1, 2 or more persons), location and will selected site visits be incorporated with the conference?

Government response: A Bidders conference will be held. The number of attendees from any one prime contractor and the location of the conference will be announced prior to release of the FCT SIR. Site visits sponsored by the FAA will not be conducted.

Suggestion from a respondent: We recommend that some figures workload be included in the SIR. Some examples are: Traffic count (monthly, hours of coverage, and what will be your suggestion for minimum staffing during peak traffic periods.

Government response: Information will be announced on the Internet and will include references that would be of assistance in developing proposals.

C.3.0 OPERATIONAL DOCUMENTS, DIRECTIVES, and REGULATIONS

 Although we understand that this requirement is designed to address changes in operational documents, directives and regulations, we also believe the SOW should address programs that are instituted by FAA National Headquarters or Regional Offices that require the contractor to perform tasks outside the facility, i.e. pilot briefing for Runway Incursion Program, etc.

Q.18. Does the agency plan on addressing these types of programs and the additional workload, hence cost, that they place on the contractor?

Government response: Proposals should reflect costs to perform work outlined in the SOW.

C.3.2 Distribution

The second sentence implies that documents listed in Appendix 1, which are sent to the contractor, become the responsibility of the contractor for distribution to FCT sites. At present, each FCT site is on the mailing list for FAA publications and receives these documents directly from the FAA Branch responsible for publications. If the contractor must distribute all the documents from their corporate office this will unnecessarily increase cost to the program.

Q.19. Does the government plan to change the current practice of allowing each individual FCT site to be on the mailing list and thereby receive publications directly 

from the appropriate office?
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Government response: No changes to current distribution procedures are anticipated.

C.4.0 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLITIES

C.4.1.3 This requirement seems to conflict with FAA Order 7232.5, Reduced or Increased Operating Hours of Airport Control Towers/Approach Control Facilities. Requests are processed first through the FAA Region responsible for that particular location. Currently the FCT Program Office becomes involved once the need for a reduction/increase in hours of operation has been approved at the regional level.

Q.20. Is it the intention of the government to reverse the process and make the FCT Program Office the primary point of contact for request for changes in hours?

Government response: No. FCT’s are to contact their Regional Point-of-Contact.

C.4.7.1

Item 1: Facility training programs are developed at the facility level to comply with regulations listed in the paragraph, however, FAA Order 7210.54A, Appendix 1, states in a “Note” that only the contractors corporate office needs to be sent a copy of FAR’s, including FAR Part 91 and 93 listed in the requirements.  

Q.21. Does the government plan to provide all of the FARS to each FCT site so that they can comply with this requirement?

Government response: No.

Item 2: The requirement specifies that the program include FAA National Air Traffic Training Terminal Proficiency/Refresher Units (TPU). It is our understanding that the TPUs are outdated (1995) and the FAA is moving to the use of CBI for all training.

Q.22. Does the agency plan to reflect the change to CBI training in this requirement?

Government response: No. TPU’s remain in effect and are being updated.

Statement of Work (SOW) comment on Paragraph C.4.7.4.1. This requirement should be eliminated from the SOW. Current FAA regulations, i.e. FAA Order 7210.3, has very specific requirements for recertification. Contractors already must comply with these requirements and the requirement, as stated in the SOW, raises many questions. For example, the contractor may temporarily suspend an employee from ATC duties until 

clarification is received regarding medication, disciplinary problems and/or many other situations that do not relate directly to Operational Errors.
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Q.23. Can the government eliminate this paragraph, or at a minimum further clarify its application?

Government response: The SOW will be changed to reflect procedures to be followed as outlined in FAA Order 7210.56.

C.4.7.4.2 The 60 day provision appears to conflict with the requirements in FAA Order 3120 that states 120 days. In addition, the use of the term ”remedial” does not seem appropriate in the context of this paragraph. “attend a period of …refresher training and, if necessary, recertification.”

Q.24. Is it the governments intention to shorten the time limits specified in Order 3120?

Government response: The SOW will be changed to reflect procedures to be followed as outlined in FAA Order 3120.4.

Statement of Work (SOW) Paragraph C.4.8 States in line 5 of the paragraph,…”The contractor shall establish and maintain a quality assurance program, in accordance with FAA Orders 7210.3 and 7010.1, which is subject to evaluations.”

Respondents suggestion: We suggest that FAA Order 7210,56, Air Traffic Quality Assurance; be added to this sentence. The order is listed in appendix but this paragraph could lead a potential contractor to determine their program does not have to meet the requirement.

Government response: Concur.

Statement of Work (SOW) Paragraph C.14.13.2. This requirement would require that contractors establish a per hour cost, to include DOL wage rate, holiday and vacation, taxes, general administrative cost, overhead and fee. To tie this cost to the number of hours a specific individual works each month is representative of a cost plus contract not a firm fixed price as described in attachment a

Q.25. Is it the agency’s intention to utilize a Firm-Fixed Price contract, as stated in Attachment A of the announcement, or a Cost-Plus Contract?

Government response: The FCT contract(s) will be Firm-Fixed-Price.

C.5.0 FAA RESPONSIBILITIES
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Item 1: FAA Order 7210.55 was cancelled by GENOT earlier this year (October 1998). Order should be deleted from the list.

Government response: FAA Order 7210.55  is current and will remain in effect.

Item 2: FAA National Air Traffic Training Program Terminal Proficiency and Refresher Units are outdated and should be replaced with CBI training system per our information received from AAT.

Government response: TPU’s remain in effect and are being updated.

Appendix 2

Add…… “Federal Meteorlogical Handbook, FMH-9, Aviation Weather Observations, available from NWS.

Government response: Concur

In the draft, the FAA does not establish a minimum staffing requirement for the individual facilities.

Q.26. Will the FAA be establishing any minimum staffing requirements?

Government response: No.

Appendix 4 contained what we believe are some incorrect data concerning the inclusion of some facilities into the program, facility hours of operation, and site-specific requirements. 

Government response: The information in the Appendix will be reverified prior to release of the final SIR. 

Q.27. Will FCT location 0122, Lawton Municipal be included in the program? The draft indicates that it will be converted to the program and that it will not be included.

Government response: It is scheduled to be included. 

Q.28. Is FCT location 0137, Ardmore Municipal, OK in the program? Information we have found on the Internet indicates that Ardmore Development Authority operates this airport and has a contract with Midwest ATC.

Government response: Ardmore Municipal is in the program.
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Q.29.  FCT Location 0234, Rosecrans Memorial, MO is listed as an FCT location. Our research indicated that the Air National Guard operates the tower at this airport. Is a change in the offing?

Government response: Although this site is operated by the Air National Guard, bidders will be required to include it in their proposals.

Q.30. Hours of operation at FCT location 0330, Bellingham International, WA are listed as 0700-2330 with no weather reporting services. It is our understanding that Bellingham is a 24 hour facility providing full weather reporting services (not SAWRS/LAWRS). Is the draft in error or will there be a change to Bellingham’s operation in the new contract?

Government response: The information provided in the SOW is correct.

Respondents suggestions: We would like to see the towers divided up into more Regions. This will open the program up further to more companies.

Government response: Suggestion acknowledged.

Q.31. In Attachment B of the Draft SOW, Area 1 includes four future FCT locations. Areas 2, 3, and 4, we believe, had future sites planned but not implemented for Option Year 4 of the present contract. Are those new sites in Areas 2, 3, and 4 still valid?

Government response: The final SOW will include FCT locations for which a proposal is expected.

Q.32. At several sites listed in Attachment B of the Draft Statement of Work, we do not understand the parenthetical statement (Not to be included in National contract) Sites 0021, 0022, 0024, 0105, 0120, and 0127 were scheduled for conversion in Option Year 4, but were held in abeyance due to pending litigation. Are these towers no longer qualified for the FCT program?

Government response: Same as provided for Q.31 above.

Q.33.  We noted several sites in Attachment B of the SOW that were “Reserved.” What does this status mean?

Government response: The term “Reserved” means that the site number is reserved for possible future use.

Q.34. Will the RFP publish traffic statistics, mix of traffic, local/itinerant operations, etc. in the site-specific information (Appendix B)?
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Government response: No. However, some site information can be obtained on the FAA WEB page under APO.  

Q.35. Will the RFP contain performance outcomes/discriminators such as Quality Assurance Evaluation scores/results, number of operational errors/deviations versus number of operations?

Government response: No.

Q.36.  FAA has defined the future contract to be Firm-Fixed-Price and the requirement is for full and open competition. Will selection and award be a two-step process based on the “lowest cost,” or will experience and performance be considered as “best value” to the government?

Government response: The contract will be Firm-Fixed-Price and best value to the government.

Q.37. There were no specific national sovereignty/security requirements in the previous national contract. U.S. citizenship was a requirement of supervisory and controller personnel. Many airports support DOD operations and training exercises. In this regard, will industry be restricted to U.S. owned companies, or will the government accept bids from foreign-owned companies, in light of DOD and national security requirements?

Government response: The Government will accept responses from all offerors except those outlined in Section I of the SIR. 

Q.38.  Reference Draft SOW, paragraph C.4.13.2, “the contractor shall submit a monthly    staffing report for each FCT location….” We suggest this report be submitted every four weeks(13 reports annually) to reflect staffing at each site since the Contractor’s Time and Attendance (T&A) and Payroll records are in bi-weekly periods. The correlation of payroll records to monthly invoices is very difficult to match, except in six-month intervals; e.g., we have 13 pay periods matching six consecutive month, with one day remaining each year, except “leap year” when there are two extra days in addition to the 26 pay periods annually.

Government response: The SOW will contain a requirement for a facility report. A requirement for a Staffing report has been eliminated.

Q.39. Reference Draft SOW, paragraph C.5.3, what is the FAA’s definition for “remote FCT locations”?

Government response: This SOW requirement has been reworded
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Q.40. Reference Draft SOW, paragraph C.5.3.1. This paragraph implies that a new workforce will be brought in when a new contractor replaces an “incumbent” contractor. We believe this would be very disruptive to the continuity of operations,  and moreover threatens the incumbent personnel with loss of employment. Many of our towers voted to be represented by a Union because of this very issue (job security). We recommend that incumbent personnel be given first right of refusal for employment when there is a change in Contractors at a particular site.

Government response: Comment acknowledged.

Q.41. What requirements, (experience in contract Air Traffic Control, Financial Resources, etc) will be required of Bidders desiring to compete for the Contract Towers (FCT) contract? When will these requirements be published? 

Government response: This information will be included in the FCT SIR announcement.

Q.42.  Bidders desiring to compete must have employment information on each individual employed at the contract sites, and copies of all Labor Agreements between the present contractor and Labor Unions. This information is necessary to compute employee benefits and thus allowing all Bidders a fair and equitable opportunity to compete for the contract. When will potential Bidders be able to obtain said information?

Government Response: Offerors are expected to gain this type information as a function of proposal development research.  Information sources, other than the Government, could include the personnel working under contract at the individual sites, Unions representing the personnel working at the individual sites or the incumbent contractors. 
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List of Interested Offerors

COMPANY NAME




ADDRESS
 APPLIED TECHNO-MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, INC.
7700 Leesburg Pike

Mr. Richard Danz





Suite 405

(703) 448-0500





Falls Church, VA  22043

ARINC






2551 Riva Road

Mr. Ron Martin





Annapolis, MD  21401

(410) 266-4443

CI2, INC.





200 Galleria Parkway

Ms. Andrella Bayliss




Atlanta, GA  30339-5918

(770) 425-2267







CONTROLLERS NORTHWEST LMT


2036 Airport Road

Mr. Howard Headley




Pendleton, OR  97801

(541) 278-1993

DYNAMIC SCIENCE, INC.



232 N. Broadway

Mr. Wesley Vanderbilt




Suite 206

(812) 663-6467





Greensburg, IN  47240

MIDWEST AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL SERVICE, INC.
P.O. BOX 34

Mr. Shane L. Cordes




401 Prairie Village Drive

(913) 782-7082





New Century Aircenter, KS  66031

NATIONAL AIR TRAFFIC SERVICES, INC.

2985 West Whitton Avenue

Mr. George E. Miller




Phoeniz, AZ  85017

(602) 271-0564

NCLN20






P.O. BOX 11807

Mr. Bill Brewer





Pleasanton, CA  94588

(925) 734-1580

ROBINSON-VAN VUREN ASSOCIATES, INC.

3000 United Founders Blvd.

Mr. Sidney Robinson




Suite 240

(405) 840-3771





Oklahoma City, OK  73112

SERCO Management Services, Inc.



20 East Clementon Road

Mr. Stephen Christmas




Suite 102S

(609) 309-2413





Gibbsboro, NJ  08026

THE WEATHERMAN INC.



P.O. BOX 683

Mr. Randy Cryer





Issaquah, WA  98027-0683

(206) 510-8621
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UNITECH, INC





600 Maryland Avenue, SW

Mr. William Behan




Suite 307

(202) 484-2539





Washington, DC  20024

WALKER AIR TRAFFIC SERVICES INC.


P.O. BOX 10012

Mr. Leon A. Walker




Pensacola, Fl  32524-0012

(850) 501-2716

WASHINGTON CONSULTING GROUP, INC.

6707 Democracy Boulevard




Mr. Bill Behan





Suite 1010

(301) 581-3347





Bethesda, MD  20817

WEATHER DATA SERVICE



A division of Maytag Aircraft Corporation

Mr. Jeffrey Short





9184 265TH Street 

(515) 357-4214





Clear Lake, IA  50428

WIGGINS AND ASSOCIATES



P.O. BOX 106

Mr. Leo Wiggins





Hartselle, AL  35640

(256) 773-4354

